AVALON BOROUGH
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
JUNE 21, 2011

The meeting opened with a moment of silence for Willard Mecklenburg
who passed away on June 16, 2011. Mr. Mecklenburg served on Avalon
Borough Council from 1976 thru 1980 and 1990 thru 1992. The
moment of silence was followed by the pledge of allegianceled by Tom

L loyd.

Roll Call: Bernstein, Cortese, Donnelly, LIoyd, Narcisi, Powell, and
Repp. Also present were Dilmore, Solicitor Megan Ott, Lindsey Jewart
representing Chester Engineering, Police Chief Kokoski, Tax Collector,
Ed Klicker and Judith Brogan. Absent: Dixon, Sefick, Mayor Hadlett.

No Executive Session was held prior to the Regular Council M eeting.

LIoyd moved “to approve the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting
of May 19" and the Special Meeting of May 31, 2011.”

CARRIED
Powell seconded

Donnelly abstained from the Regular Council M eeting Minutes and the Special
Council Meeting Minutes.
Cortese abstained from the Regular Council M eeting Minutes.

COMMUNICATIONS:

e Dilmore stated that herecelved the proposal from Walt's
L andscaping on skylineclearing of treesin alleys. The program to
clear trees hindering emergency equipment access and brighten the
area hasreceived a good response from most of theresidents. A list
of streets and alleys will be given to the Streets Committee for their
recommendation for financial reasons.



e Letter and recelved from Paul Kokoski of the Auditor General’s
Office on the 2008 - 2010 Pension Audit. Mr. Kokoski is scheduled
to begin work on July 5, 2011.

VISITORS:

Tom Demengone, 736 Center Avenue, arepresentative of the Friends of
theLibrary Group stated that the Group will again be hosting the
“Touch aTruck” event from 12:00 noon until 4:00 p.m. and heis
requesting that California Avenue between S. Chestnut and Josephine
Streets be closed from 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. He also requested that
the Municipal Parking lot be closed. Dilmore stated that he will notify
Port Authority and the streetswill be closed.

Jackie Yurkovich stated that sheisrepresenting Linda Hudginswho is
unableto attend the meeting. Jackie stated that Linda hastried to call
the contractor several timesregarding theremoval of debrisleft behind
by them, but sheisnot getting aresponse. The company wor ked at 308
Fisk Street and she has spoken to Dilmor e about the danger ous wood
and stakes left behind. Dilmore stated that he spoke to the company
working there and although they are not the company that did the work
last year, they will remove the debris.

Jackiethanked Tom Michalow and the students and volunteersfor the
success of the Dumpster Day on June 18, 2011. Her only
recommendation at histimeisthat there should be more advertising
because too many people did not know about the Dumpster Day.
Dilmor e stated that the ad was on the web site, however, dueto a
computer glitch, thead did not get published in the Citizen as planned.

Everyone agreed that even though the advertising was minimal, it wasa
very successful event.

Donnelly stated that she talked to Tom at the pool and he has a few
recommendations for next year.

Jackie stated that there are rodents on Grandview Avenue and asked
who she can contact to complain and/or get some help. She stated that
she has been terrorized for the past week by them and asked who she
can call and what she and her neighborscan do to get help.

2



Dilmor e stated that hewill call the Health Department for her and they
will have to bait the ar ea.

MAYOR:

NO REPORT

SECRETARY/MANAGER:

Dilmor e stated that he met with John Jakiela of the Quaker
Valley COG regarding the CD37 Grantswhich werefor the
handicap walkway ramps and benches on California Avenue.
Dilmore stated that he can get six (6) benchesthat he wantsto
placein various spots on California Avenue. Hewill work with
theresidentsto placethem in areasthat will be beneficial to
everyone.

Completed the CD38 project pre applications and submitted them
to the Quaker Valley Council of Gover nments.

Completed all of the paperwork associated with the 2011/2012
Salt Contract. Waiting for the bid results.

Met with the Engineer on the West Bellevue Road Pr oj ect.
Lindsey Jewert will give her report at this meeting.

Contacted and met with the Teamster Business Agent on setting
negotiations for the Department of Public Works contract which
endsthisyear.

SOLICITOR:

Megan Ott stated that the Borough Manager referred to her officea
notice hereceived regarding a Pension Account being put in
bankruptcy. She suggeststhat the Borough filea claim whichis
basically a document stating that the Borough received a notice of the
bankruptcy by July 20, 2011.



M egan stated that she also discussed with the Manager, the collection of
the ongoing sewage bill for the Avalon Motel. She stated that Dilmore
has the situation under control.

Thethird issuesheisreporting on isthe Order of Court for the
property donation that has been ongoing and the court is now allowing
the Borough to proceed.

Lastly, thereisa parking resolution litigation matter that will be
discussed at an Executive Board M eeting following the Regular Council
M eeting.

Powell asked what the Borough’s statusis at thistime and Megan stated
that sheisnot sure how much the Borough will get but she believesthe
paperwor k should befiled.

Donnelly asked what state the Pension Class Action suit wasfiled and
Megan stated that it wasfiled in Chicago but sheiscertain that it is not
necessary to hirealawyer in Chicago to handle the matter.

ENGINEERS REPORT:

Lindsey Jewert of Chester Engineering reported on the West Bellevue
Road Project stating that the winning bid Contactor met with Shawn
Rosenstedl of Chester Engineering and they will beready to start the
project within the next two weeks.

Repp asked if everything isunder control with the contractor and
Lindsey stated that it isat thistime.

Powell asked if thetimeline for the project iswithin the construction
season and Dilmor e stated that the time line scope is forty-five (45) days
and the contractor thinksthey will need thirty (30) days and they will
usethelast two (2) weeksfor final grading and for clean-up in the area.
He stated that they will lay new pipe asthey take out the old pipe and
they will be by-pass pumping the entiretime.



FINANCE:

Powell stated with the success of the Dumpster day, he thinks a second
dumpster isneeded.

Powell moved:
“To accept the Finance Report as submitted.”

CARRIED
Bernstein 2™

“To accept the Treasurer’s Report of June 21, 2011 as submitted.”

CARRIED
Bernstein 2™

“To accept the Tax Collector’s Report dated May 27, 2011 as
submitted.”

CARRIED
Bernstein 2"
“To accept the Finance Report as submitted.”
CARRIED
Bernstein 2"
“To pay theList of Billsas submitted.”
CARRIED
Bernstein 2nd

Powell spoke about the possibility of adopting a dress code for Avalon
Council for public meetings. He stated that he did some research and
found a memo for Avalon Borough dated June 2, 1983.



The memo states that jogging suits, sportswear, T-shirtsand thelike
are not suitable for Council meetings. Also, feet up on the desk are not
necessary.

Repp stated that Powell could “suggest” a dress code. Megan Ott stated
that it would be a Policy and that Council could not remove anyone for
not adhering to the dress at meetings.

Repp stated that Powell could address the Personnel Committee
regarding the Policy.

Klicker stated that heisgetting alot of tax money coming in at thistime
but it isthe end of the discount period. Hefeelstheincome may drop
after the discount period ends.

Klicker stated that thereisatimelinefor Keystone taking over and heis
putting a data base together for them. Klicker isplanning on closing off
any acceptance for tax filingson June 30, 2011. Everything will be
turned over to Keystone sometime after that.

Klicker isnot anticipating any over-pays credited to the following year
and refundsover $1.00 must berefunded. He believesit will be a good
thing when K eystone takes over and he will keep Council updated.

Dilmor e stated that opting in early with Keystone has given the
Borough an advantage because the Borough gets mor e attention and the
numbers are more accurate. He believesthat they madetheright
decision by going with Keystone Collections Group.

Repp asked how it isgoing so far with collections and Dilmor e stated
that they already received $600.00 for the month.

SAFETY:

Narcis stated that he hasa request for a handicap parking sign in the
vicinity of 546 Marie Avenue.



Narcis asked Chief Kokoski for a recommendation for arequest for a
handicap parking sign for theend of Marie Avenue.

Kokoski stated that Marie Avenueisalong street and thereare alot of
carson thestreet. Therearetwo signson the street already.

Donnelly asked if the address on the application isfor hishome and
Narcis affirmed that it isfor hishome.

Narcis moved:

“To approve a handicap parking spacein thevicinity of 546 Marie
Avenue”

Powell stated that in the past, Council has approved handicap signsto
people who do not drive, stating that the spouse of family member
drivesand hewondersif that isfair. Narcisi explained that oftentimes,
people who aredriving the handicap personslive in the home and/or
have a placard in their car already.

Bernstein asked if there are supposed to be one or two handicap signs
on astreet and Narcis stated that it istwo signsin one block.

Dilmore stated that the signs are for anyone needing a handicap
parking space not just for the person applying for the sign and that was
confirmed.

Narcis stated that heisnot surethat the sign by theformer Avalon
Pharmacy is necessary and Dilmore stated that if the sign isremoved
therewon’t be any handicap spaces availablein that area.

Donnéelly stated that the system needsto be* revamped” to bringit up to
date.

After further discussion the motion was...

CARRIED
(Powell voted no)



Narcis noted that there has been a lot of tension within the Police
Department regarding parking on public streetsin Avalon. He
suggested that Council should consider amending the Ordinance for
towing unregistered cars and dangerous cars being parked on the street.

He asked that Megan Ott, Borough Salicitor, look into the legality of
towing carsthat arein disrepair, unregister ed and otherwise danger ous,
even though the cars may be parked on private property.

Narcis stated that these cars are accessible to children and therefore
dangerous. Also animalsarelivingin them which are another danger to
consider and the cars should be towed.

Narcis stated that the Quality of Life Committee attended the Streets
Meeting and has been granted approval for two street fairs—one on
Grandview Avenue and one on Hemlock Street.

He noted that a motion isnot required for thisbut heis making Council
awar e that the Committeeisfollowing through on their projects.

Narcis asked Chief Kokoski about the grant the Police Department
received. Kokoski stated that they had applied for and received a grant
that enabled them to receive $1,000.00 with a 10% matching grant.
Thismeansthat if the department spends $100.00 they get $1,000 in
mer chandise. Therefore, they were ableto get the portable
breathalyzers.

Narcis noted that the police department secretary, Ericka Anthony, did
the paperwork to apply for the grant and Kokoski stated that the
department isvery pleased with Ericka’ swork.

Kokoski stated that Officer Sean Kirley attended the class on tagging
over-sized and overweight trucks and has been certified.

Narcis asked about the two injured officer swho have been on short
term disability and worker’s compensation.



Kokoski stated that Officer Bob Espy has been released toreturn to
work and ison the schedule for July 11, 2011 and Walter Johnson, who
has been on worker’s compensation is scheduled to see the doctor again
on July 18, 2011. Kokoski isnot surewhen Johnson will return to work.

Narcis suggested that Council consider making changesto the burning
ordinance. No further discussion at thistime.

STREETS:

L loyd thanked Tom Michalow, the student volunteers, the Street Crew
and Harry Dilmorefor helping to make the dumpster day a success.

Lloyd stated that the roof on thefire station garage isalmost complete,
the Street Crew isworking on street repairs and patching and the next
Quality of Life meeting isscheduled for July 28, 2011 at 7:00 p.m.

PROPERTY:
NO REPORT
HEALTH:

Dilmor e spoke for Dixon and reported that they are working with the
Quaker Valley Council of Governmentson the new gar bage contract.
They are anticipating that it will be put out for bid the first week of July
and discussing it at the July meeting.

He stated that Avalon signs a separ ate contract even though it iswor ked
out through the QVCOG. He also noted that Avalon will be switching
to Waste Management for billing and collection based on previous
Council decisions.

CORP/PLANNING:

Repp asked Bernstein if he knowsif the Planning Commission or the
Tri-Borosreceived anything on the billboard. Bernstein stated that he
does not know and Dilmor e stated that Mr. M eans had forwar ded
everything to him.



Chuck Meansis handling everything for Ben Avon and Dilmore will
report to Council when he has mor e infor mation.

INTER-BORO:

Donnelly stated that she did not attend the May meeting for the Quaker
Valley Council of Gover nments so she had no report.

Donnelly moved “to accept Resolution No. 1074 authorizing the
application for funding for a municipal gover nment efficiency services
grant through the Allegheny County Department of Development.”

Bernstein 2™

Repp asked for questions and/or comments on the motion and Dilmore
explained that thisisa grant that Katy Haleis encouraging the
Boroughsto apply for and she made a presentation at the Quaker
Valley Council of Gover nments.

Avalon istaking part and if the grant isreceived, the Borough will be
responsible for $1,600.00. Dilmore explained that a group of students
from Carnegie Mellon University did a study that showed the value of
thesigns. He also stated that the signswill be posted to point out
pedestrian walkways, historical monuments and specific buildings such
astheLibrary and Municipal Building.

Repp called for a vote and the motion was...

CARRIED
PARKS:
Cortese moved “to permit the use of the Avalon Athletic Fieldson
Sunday, June 26, 2011 for a special event held by the Bellevue/Avalon
Boys and Girls Baseball Association. This event will be for the benefit of

the Timmer Family.”
Donnelly 2™

10



Dilmor e stated that the Avalon Contract iswith the Boys Baseball
Association but heisaware that the boysand girls are doing the event
together and the motion isvalid asread.

Repp called for a vote and the motion was...
CARRIED

Cortese stated that there have been complaints about speeding at the
pool and he found out that thereisno timeor spaceto clock the
speeders. He asked the Police Chief about new signswith 5 (five) mile
an hour limits.

Police Chief Kokoski stated that there are speed bumps but thereareno
lightsto slow the carsdown. Hecan send acar totry to slow the cars.

Donnelly asked if it would be possible to borrow a machine that would
clock thecars. Dilmore stated that the machineisbeing used at this
time.

K okoski promised to have the police do their best to get thedriversto
slow down in that area and to get new signs.

Yurkovich stated that people are amazed at Avalon’s pool prices
compared to surrounding areas.

Cortese stated theratesfor 2011 are $7.00 for adults, $5.00 for children
5-7 and $1.00 for children 2-4, compared to Bellevue' s $7.00 flat rate.

Cortese stated that theincome for the pool is $2,000 over last year on
the shelter rentals, and $3,000 to $4,000 over on pool passes.

Yurkovich stated that shewas at a picnic at the shelter and the kitchen
was spotless. She stated that the Crew workers are doing an excellent
job keeping the park and picnic areas clean.

L loyd noted that Bellevueisin the closing phases of doing the dog swim.

Narcis asked Connie Rankin how the dog park is coming along. Connie
stated that they aretrying to raise the money thru fund raisers. Lloyd

11



asked when it will open and Connie stated that it dependson the
volunteers and they are hoping to haveit open to dogs by the end of
summer. It may takelonger to get thewater and agility cour se and she
thinksit going to bereally “cool.”

Connie stated that the park isprivately funded and donations can be
sent to the Bellevue Dog Wood Association.

LIBRARY:

Donnelly stated that she attended a Library meeting wherethey
discussed old and new business. They also discussed AFIB and safety
classes. Shestated that the Library hasa full agenda that is seasonably
booked. They raised $493.85 in pennies and have other activities
planned.

Bernstein pointed out that you can follow the Library activities on
Facebook and Donnelly noted that the children are taking advantage of
theLibrary services.

A JuULY:

Connie Rankin announced the 4™ of July celebration will be held on
Friday, July 2, 2010. The celebration will begin at 7:30 p.m. and the
fireworkswill begin at dusk. Therain dateisJuly 10, 2011.

The company doing thefireworksis Pyrotechnics'. Thefireworkswill
be set to Patriotic music and they are promising a great new show.

Bob Arnold’s band, the Uptown Rhythm and Brass Band will perform
again thisyear and therewill beahot dog eating contest aswell as other
activities.

Connie asked for volunteersto help again thisyear.

12



Powell moved:

“To adjourn to an Executive meeting.”
Bernstein 2™

CARRIED

The meeting ended at approximately 8:50 p.m.

Respectfully submitted

Harry W. Dilmore
Manager

13



